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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA 

ATLANTA DIVISION 
 

LAVONNE BURDEN, on behalf of 
herself and all others similarly situated, 
   
Plaintiff, 
 
 vs. 
 
TRIDENT ASSET MANAGEMENT, 
LLC, AND OPS 9, LLC, 
 
Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Civil Action No. __________________ 
 
 
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
AND TRIAL BY JURY DEMAND 
 
  
   

 
NATURE OF ACTION 

1. Plaintiff Lavonne Burden (“Plaintiff”) brings this action against 

Defendants Trident Asset Management, LLC (“Trident”) and OPS 9, LLC (“OPS”) 

(collectively, “Defendants”) pursuant to the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 

(“FDCPA”), 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq., on behalf of herself and all others similarly 

situated. 

JURISDICTION, VENUE, AND STANDING 

2. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(d) and 28 

U.S.C. § 1331.   

3. Venue is proper before this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), 

where the acts and transactions giving rise to Plaintiff’s action occurred in this 
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district, where Plaintiff resides in this district, and where Defendants transact 

business in this district.  

4. “In determining whether an intangible harm constitutes injury in fact, 

both history and the judgment of Congress play important roles.”  Spokeo, Inc. v. 

Robins, 136 S. Ct. 1540, 1549, 194 L. Ed. 2d 635 (2016), as revised (May 24, 

2016). Congress is “well positioned to identify intangible harms that meet 

minimum Article III requirements,” thus “Congress may ‘elevat[e] to the status of 

legally cognizable injuries concrete, de facto injuries that were previously 

inadequate in law.’”  Id. (quoting Lujan v. Defs of Wildlife, 504 U.S. 555, 578 

(1992)).  

5.  “Without the protections of the FDCPA, Congress determined, the 

‘[e]xisting laws and procedures for redressing these injuries are inadequate to 

protect consumers.’”  Lane v. Bayview Loan Servicing, LLC, No. 15 C 10446, 2016 

WL 3671467, at *3 (N.D. Ill. July 11, 2016) (quoting 15 U.S.C. § 1692(b)).  Thus, 

a failure to honor a consumer’s right under the FDCPA constitutes an injury in fact 

for Article III standing.  See id. at *3 (holding that a consumer “has alleged a 

sufficiently concrete injury because he alleges that [defendant] denied him the right 

to information due to him under the FDCPA.”); see also Church v. Accretive 

Health, Inc., No. 15-15708, 2016 WL 3611543, at *3 (11th Cir. July 6, 2016) 
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(holding that consumer’s § 1692g claim was sufficiently concrete to satisfy injury-

in-fact requirement).  

6.  “[E]ven though actual monetary harm is a sufficient condition to 

show concrete harm, it is not a necessary condition.”  Lane, 2016 WL 3671467, at 

*4 (emphasis in original).   

THE FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT 

7. Congress enacted the FDCPA to “eliminate abusive debt collection 

practices, to ensure that debt collectors who abstain from such practices are not 

competitively disadvantaged, and to promote consistent state action to protect 

consumers.” Jerman v. Carlisle, McNellie, Rini, Kramer & Ulrich LPA, 559 U.S. 

573, 577 (2010) (citing 15 U.S.C. § 1692(e)).  

8. The FDCPA is described as a strict liability statute which “typically 

subjects debt collectors to liability even when violations are not knowing or 

intentional.”  Owen v. I.C. Sys., Inc., 629 F.3d 1263, 1270 (11th Cir. 2011).  

9. “A single violation of the Act is sufficient to subject a debt collector 

to liability under the Act.”  Lewis v. Marinosci Law Grp., P.C., No. 13-61676-CIV, 

2013 WL 5789183, at *2 (S.D. Fla. Oct. 29, 2013). 
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10. The Eleventh Circuit applies the “least sophisticated consumer” 

standard to determine whether a debt collector’s communication violates the 

FDCPA.  Jeter v. Credit Bureau, Inc., 760 F.2d 1168, 1175 (11th Cir. 1985). 

11. This objective standard does not consider “whether the particular 

plaintiff-consumer was deceived or misled; instead, the question is ‘whether the 

‘least sophisticated consumer’ would have been deceived’ by the debt collector's 

conduct.”  Crawford v. LVNV Funding, LLC, 758 F.3d 1254, 1258 (11th Cir. 2014) 

(quoting Jeter, 760 F.2d at 1177 n.11)). 

PARTIES 

12. Plaintiff is a natural person who at all relevant times resided in the 

State of Georgia, County of Henry, and City of Hampton.   

13. Plaintiff is a “consumer” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(3).   

14. Trident is an entity who at all relevant times was engaged, by use of 

the mails and telephone, in the business of attempting to collect a “debt” from 

Plaintiff, as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(5). 

15. Trident is a “debt collector” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6).  

16. OPS is an entity who at all relevant times was engaged, by use of the 

mails and telephone, in the business of attempting to collect a “debt” from 

Plaintiff, as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(5). 
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17. OPS is a “debt collector” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6).    

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

18. Plaintiff is a natural person allegedly obligated to pay a debt. 

19. Plaintiff’s alleged obligation arises from a transaction in which the 

money, property, insurance, or services that are the subject of the transaction were 

incurred primarily for personal, family, or household purposes—namely, clothing 

purchased at Dress Barn (the “Debt”). 

20. Trident uses instrumentalities of interstate commerce or the mails in a 

business the principal purpose of which is the collection of any debts. 

21. Trident regularly attempts to collect, directly or indirectly, debts 

asserted to be owed or due, another. 

22. OPS regularly purchases debts asserted to be once owed or once due, 

a creditor. 

23. The principal purpose of OPS’s business is the collection of debts, 

whether through direct or indirect collection. 

24. OPS acquired Plaintiff’s Debt after it was allegedly in default. 

25. After OPS acquired the Debt, OPS retained Trident to collect the Debt 

from Plaintiff on its behalf. 
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26. In connection with the collection of the Debt, Trident, itself and on 

behalf of OPS, sent Plaintiff a letter dated March 21, 2017. 

27. A true and correct copy of Trident’s March 21, 2017 letter is attached 

to this complaint as Exhibit A. 

28. Trident’s March 21, 2017 letter was its initial communication with 

Plaintiff with respect to the Debt. 

29. Trident’s March 21, 2017 letter stated that Plaintiff owed $117.71 for 

writing a check to Dress Barn on March 9, 2011, returned for non-sufficient funds. 

30. The applicable statute of limitations in Georgia on non-sufficient fund 

checks is three years. See O.C.G.A. § 11-3-118(c). 

31. Therefore, the Debt is no longer enforceable by judicial means.   

32. In Georgia, any payment or written acknowledgment on a time-barred 

debt constitutes a new promise to pay and renews the statute of limitations.  See 

O.C.G.A. § 9-3-112 (“A payment entered upon a written evidence of debt by the 

debtor or upon any other written acknowledgment of the existing liability shall be 

equivalent to a new promise to pay.”).  

33. Trident’s March 21, 2017 letter does not explain that a partial 

payment could renew the statute of limitations on the Debt.  
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34. “[S]tatutes of limitation . . . serve the legitimate public policy goal of 

promoting justice and furthering the certainty of time limitations while preventing 

unfair surprise.” Walker v. Brannan, 243 Ga. App. 235, 238–39, 533 S.E.2d 129, 

132 (Ga. App. 2000). 

35. Trident’s March 21, 2017 letter is unfair and unconscionable where it 

fails to explain that a partial payment or written acknowledgement of the Debt 

could renew the statute of limitations on the entirety of the Debt. 

36. In addition, Trident’s March 21, 2017 letter also stated “that any other 

offers by our office to settle this account – if still valid – will be accepted as per 

the terms of the offer.”  Exhibit A (emphasis added). 

37. Plaintiff, or the least sophisticated consumer, could reasonably 

interpret Trident’s offer to “settle” the Debt as an indication that the Debt was still 

enforceable through judicial means. 

38. By representing that it was offering to “settle this account,” Trident’s 

March 21, 2017 letter is false, misleading, or deceptive, because the least 

sophisticated consumer could read the letter as suggesting that the Debt could be 

enforced through judicial means, when, in fact, it could not. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

39. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges all factual allegations above.   
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40. The March 21, 2017 letter is based on a form or template (the 

“Template”). 

41. Trident regularly sends letters based on the Template to consumers in 

an attempt to collect debts based upon non-sufficient fund checks and includes the 

date of the check after the heading: “Check Date”. 

42. The Template attempts to collect debts which are beyond the 

applicable statute of limitations for non-sufficient fund checks. 

43. The Template further states that it is an offer to “settle” the time-

barred debt. 

44. The Template does not disclose that the debt is past the statute of 

limitations or not enforceable by judicial means, nor does it disclose that a partial 

payment would revive the limitations period. 

45. Trident has used the Template to send collection letters to at least 40 

individuals whose debt is beyond the statute of limitations in Georgia in the year 

prior to the filing of this complaint. 

46. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of herself and all others similarly 

situated.  Specifically, Plaintiff seeks to represent the following class: 

All individuals in Georgia to whom Trident sent a letter on behalf of 
OPS based upon the Template, within one year before the date of this 
complaint and in connection with the collection of a consumer debt, 
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where the “Check Date” was at least three years prior to the date 
Trident sent the letter. 
  
47. The proposed class specifically excludes the United States of 

America, the State of Georgia, counsel for the parties, the presiding United States 

District Court Judge, the Judges of the United States Court of Appeals for the 

Eleventh Circuit, and the Justices of the United States Supreme Court, all officers 

and agents of Defendants, and all persons related to within the third degree of 

consanguinity or affection to any of the foregoing persons.    

48. The class is averred to be so numerous that joinder of members is 

impracticable.   

49. The exact number of class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this 

time and can be ascertained only through appropriate discovery.   

50. The class is ascertainable in that the names and addresses of all class 

members can be identified in business records maintained by Defendants. 

51. There exists a well-defined community of interest in the questions of 

law and fact involved that affect the parties to be represented.  These common 

questions of law and fact predominate over questions that may affect individual 

class members.  Such issues include, but are not limited to: (a) the existence of 

Defendants’ identical conduct particular to the matters at issue; (b) Defendants’ 
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violations of 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq.; (c) the availability of statutory penalties; 

and (d) attorneys’ fees and costs. 

52. The claims of Plaintiff are typical of the claims of the class she seeks 

to represent. 

53. The claims of Plaintiff and of the class originate from the same 

conduct, practice, and procedure on the part of Defendants. Thus, if brought and 

prosecuted individually, the claims of each class member would require proof of 

the same material and substantive facts.   

54. Plaintiff possesses the same interests and has suffered the same 

injuries as each class member. Plaintiff asserts identical claims and seeks identical 

relief on behalf of the unnamed class members. 

55. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the class 

and has no interest adverse to or which directly and irrevocably conflicts with the 

interests of other class members. 

56. Plaintiff is willing and prepared to serve this Court and the proposed 

class. 

57. The interests of Plaintiff are co-extensive with and not antagonistic to 

those of the absent class members.   
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58. Plaintiff has retained the services of counsel who are experienced in 

consumer protection claims, as well as complex class action litigation, will 

adequately prosecute this action, and will assert, protect and otherwise represent 

Plaintiff and all absent class members.   

59. Class certification is appropriate under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(1)(A) 

and 23(b)(1)(B). The prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the 

class would, as a practical matter, be dispositive of the interests of other members 

of the class who are not parties to the action or could substantially impair or 

impede their ability to protect their interests.   

60. The prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the 

classes would create a risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to 

individual members of the classes, which would establish incompatible standards 

of conduct for the parties opposing the classes. Such incompatible standards of 

conduct and varying adjudications, on what would necessarily be the same 

essential facts, proof and legal theories, would also create and allow the existence 

of inconsistent and incompatible rights within the class. 

61. Class certification is appropriate under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2) in that 

Defendants have acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the 

class, making final declaratory or injunctive relief appropriate. 
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62. Class certification is appropriate under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3) in that 

the questions of law and fact that are common to members of the class predominate 

over any questions affecting only individual members. 

63. Moreover, a class action is superior to other methods for the fair and 

efficient adjudication of the controversies raised in this Complaint in that: (a) 

individual claims by the class members will be impracticable as the costs of pursuit 

would far exceed what any one plaintiff or class member has at stake; (b) as a 

result, very little litigation has been commenced over the controversies alleged in 

this Complaint and individual members are unlikely to have an interest in 

prosecuting and controlling separate individual actions; and (c) the concentration 

of litigation of these claims in one forum will achieve efficiency and promote 

judicial economy. 

COUNT I 
VIOLATION OF 15 U.S.C. § 1692e 

TRIDENT 
 
64. Plaintiff repeats each factual allegation contained above. 

65. The FDCPA broadly prohibits a debt collector from using “any false, 

deceptive, or misleading representation or means in connection with the collection 

of any debt,” 15 U.S.C. § 1692e, including “the false representation of the 

character, amount, or legal status of any debt,” 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(2)(A), and “[t]he 
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use of any false representation or deceptive means to collect or attempt to collect 

any debt.”  15 U.S.C. § 1692e(10). 

66. When a debt is past the statute of limitations, “collection efforts offer 

opportunities for mischief and deception.”  Pantoja v. Portfolio Recovery Assocs., 

LLC, 852 F.3d 679, 684 (7th Cir. 2017). 

67. When faced with a settlement offer or a demand for payment, “an 

unsophisticated consumer debtor who makes the first payment or who promises to 

make a partial payment is much worse off than he would have been without taking 

either step. If he then fails or refuses to pay further, he will face a potential 

lawsuit.”  Id. at 685. 

68. “[T]he FDCPA prohibits a debt collector from luring debtors away 

from the shelter of the statute of limitations without providing an unambiguous 

warning that an unsophisticated consumer would understand.”  Id. 

69. Trident violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692e by misleading the consumer as to 

whether the debt was judicially enforceable and by deceiving the consumer into 

making a payment and reviving the statute of limitations without an unambiguous 

disclaimer that doing so would restart the statute of limitations. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows:  
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a) Determining that this action is a proper class action, certifying 

Plaintiff as a class representative under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure, and designating this Complaint as the operable 

complaint for class purposes; 

b) Adjudging that Trident violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692e with respect to 

Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent; 

c) Awarding Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent actual damages 

pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(1); 

d) Awarding Plaintiff such additional damages as the Court may allow in 

the amount of $1,000, pursuant to § 1692k(a)(2)(B)(i); 

e) Awarding all other class members such amount as the Court may 

allow, without regard to a minimum individual recovery, not to 

exceed the lesser of $500,000 or one percent of the net worth of the 

debt collector, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(B)(ii); 

f) Awarding Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent, reasonable 

attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 

§ 1692k(a)(3) and Rule 23;  

g) Awarding Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent, pre-judgment 

and post-judgment interest as permissible by law; and 
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h) Awarding such other and further relief as the Court may deem proper. 

COUNT II 
VIOLATION OF 15 U.S.C. § 1692f 

TRIDENT 
 
70. Plaintiff repeats each factual allegation contained above. 

71. The FDCPA broadly prohibits a debt collector from using any “unfair 

or unconscionable means to collect or attempt to collect any debt.”  15 U.S.C. § 

1692f. 

72. Trident violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692f by soliciting payment of a debt 

from the consumer, thus luring the consumer away from the shelter of the statute of 

limitations, without providing an unambiguous warning that an unsophisticated 

consumer would understand that doing so would restart the limitations period. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows:  

a) Determining that this action is a proper class action, certifying 

Plaintiff as a class representative under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure, and designating this Complaint as the operable 

complaint for class purposes; 

b) Adjudging that Trident violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692f with respect to 

Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent; 
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c) Awarding Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent actual damages 

pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(1); 

d) Awarding Plaintiff such additional damages as the Court may allow in 

the amount of $1,000, pursuant to § 1692k(a)(2)(B)(i); 

e) Awarding all other class members such amount as the Court may 

allow, without regard to a minimum individual recovery, not to 

exceed the lesser of $500,000 or one percent of the net worth of the 

debt collector, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(B)(ii); 

f) Awarding Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent, reasonable 

attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 

§ 1692k(a)(3) and Rule 23; 

g) Awarding Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent, pre-judgment 

and post-judgment interest as permissible by law; and 

h) Awarding such other and further relief as the Court may deem proper. 

COUNT III 
VIOLATION OF 15 U.S.C. § 1692e 

OPS 
 
73. Plaintiff repeats each factual allegation contained above. 

74. Trident violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692e by using false, deceptive, or 

misleading representations or means in connection with the collection of a debt. 
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75. OPS, by virtue of its status as a “debt collector” under the FDCPA, is 

liable for the conduct of Trident – the debt collector it retained to collect on its 

behalf.  

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows:  

a) Determining that this action is a proper class action, certifying 

Plaintiff as a class representative under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure, and designating this Complaint as the operable 

complaint for class purposes; 

b) Adjudging that OPS violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692e with respect to 

Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent; 

c) Awarding Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent actual damages 

pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(1); 

d) Awarding Plaintiff such additional damages as the Court may allow in 

the amount of $1,000, pursuant to § 1692k(a)(2)(B)(i); 

e) Awarding all other class members such amount as the Court may 

allow, without regard to a minimum individual recovery, not to 

exceed the lesser of $500,000 or one percent of the net worth of the 

debt collector, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(B)(ii); 
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f) Awarding Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent, reasonable 

attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 

§ 1692k(a)(3) and Rule 23;  

g) Awarding Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent, pre-judgment 

and post-judgment interest as permissible by law; and 

h) Awarding such other and further relief as the Court may deem proper. 

COUNT IV 
VIOLATION OF 15 U.S.C. § 1692f 

OPS 
 
76. Plaintiff repeats each factual allegation contained above. 

77. Trident violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692f by using unfair or unconscionable 

means in connection with the collection of a debt.   

78. OPS, by virtue of its status as a “debt collector” under the FDCPA, is 

liable for the conduct of Trident – the debt collector it retained to collect on its 

behalf.  

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows:  

a) Determining that this action is a proper class action, certifying 

Plaintiff as a class representative under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure, and designating this Complaint as the operable 

complaint for class purposes; 
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b) Adjudging that OPS violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692f with respect to 

Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent; 

c) Awarding Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent actual damages 

pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(1); 

d) Awarding Plaintiff such additional damages as the Court may allow in 

the amount of $1,000, pursuant to § 1692k(a)(2)(B)(i); 

e) Awarding all other class members such amount as the Court may 

allow, without regard to a minimum individual recovery, not to 

exceed the lesser of $500,000 or one percent of the net worth of the 

debt collector, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(B)(ii); 

f) Awarding Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent, reasonable 

attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 

§ 1692k(a)(3) and Rule 23;  

g) Awarding Plaintiff and the class she seeks to represent, pre-judgment 

and post-judgment interest as permissible by law; and 

h) Awarding such other and further relief as the Court may deem proper. 
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TRIAL BY JURY 

79. Plaintiff is entitled to and hereby demands a trial by jury. 

Dated: September 12, 2017 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
s/Marques J. Carter 
Marques J. Carter 
Georgia Bar No. 105133 
Law Office of Marques J. Carter, LLC 
3400 Chapel Hill Road, Suite 100 
Douglasville, GA 30135 
(888) 332-7252 
(866) 842-3303 (fax) 
mcarter@consumerlawinfo.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
 
Correspondence address: 
Thompson Consumer Law Group, PLLC 
5235 E. Southern Ave., D106-618 
Mesa, AZ 85206 

 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL RULE 5.1 

 
The undersigned hereby certifies that the foregoing document has been 

prepared in accordance with the font type and margin requirements of Local Rule 

5.1 of the Northern District of Georgia, using a font type of Times New Roman 

and a point size of 14. 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
s/Marques J. Carter 
Marques J. Carter 
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Lavonne Burden  
Trident Asset Management, LLC and OPS 9, LLC

Henry

 
Marques J. Carter, Law Office of Marques J. Carter, LLC 
3400 Chapel Hill Road, Suite 100, Douglasville GA 30135 
Phone: (888) 595-9111

15 USC 1692 
 
Violation of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act



VI. NATURE OF SUIT (PLACE AN “X” IN ONE BOX ONLY)

CONTRACT - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK’
150 RECOVERY OF OVERPAYMENT &  
         ENFORCEMENT OF JUDGMENT
152 RECOVERY OF DEFAULTED STUDENT
        LOANS (Excl. Veterans)
153 RECOVERY OF OVERPAYMENT OF 
        VETERAN'S BENEFITS

CONTRACT - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
110 INSURANCE
120 MARINE
130 MILLER ACT
140 NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENT
151 MEDICARE ACT
160 STOCKHOLDERS' SUITS
190 OTHER CONTRACT
195 CONTRACT PRODUCT LIABILITY
196 FRANCHISE

REAL PROPERTY - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

210 LAND CONDEMNATION
220 FORECLOSURE
230 RENT LEASE & EJECTMENT
240 TORTS TO LAND
245 TORT PRODUCT LIABILITY
290 ALL OTHER REAL PROPERTY

TORTS - PERSONAL INJURY - "4" MONTHS
DISCOVERY TRACK

310 AIRPLANE
315 AIRPLANE PRODUCT LIABILITY
320 ASSAULT, LIBEL & SLANDER
330 FEDERAL EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
340 MARINE
345 MARINE PRODUCT LIABILITY
350 MOTOR VEHICLE
355 MOTOR VEHICLE PRODUCT LIABILITY
360 OTHER PERSONAL INJURY
362 PERSONAL INJURY - MEDICAL
       MALPRACTICE
365 PERSONAL INJURY - PRODUCT LIABILITY   
367 PERSONAL INJURY - HEALTH CARE/

   PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCT LIABILITY
368 ASBESTOS PERSONAL INJURY PRODUCT          

   LIABILITY

TORTS - PERSONAL PROPERTY - "4" MONTHS
DISCOVERY TRACK

370 OTHER FRAUD
371 TRUTH IN LENDING
380 OTHER PERSONAL PROPERTY DAMAGE       
385 PROPERTY DAMAGE PRODUCT LIABILITY   

BANKRUPTCY - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
422 APPEAL 28 USC 158
423 WITHDRAWAL 28 USC 157

CIVIL RIGHTS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
441 VOTING
442 EMPLOYMENT
443 HOUSING/ ACCOMMODATIONS
444 WELFARE
440 OTHER CIVIL RIGHTS
445 AMERICANS with DISABILITIES -  Employment
446 AMERICANS with DISABILITIES -  Other
448 EDUCATION 

IMMIGRATION - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
462 NATURALIZATION APPLICATION
463 HABEAS CORPUS- Alien Detainee
465 OTHER IMMIGRATION ACTIONS

PRISONER PETITIONS - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

510 MOTIONS TO VACATE SENTENCE
530 HABEAS CORPUS
535 HABEAS CORPUS DEATH PENALTY
540 MANDAMUS & OTHER
550 CIVIL RIGHTS - Filed Pro se
555 PRISON CONDITION(S) - Filed Pro se
560 CIVIL DETAINEE: CONDITIONS OF
       CONFINEMENT

PRISONER PETITIONS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

550 CIVIL RIGHTS - Filed by Counsel
555 PRISON CONDITION(S) - Filed by Counsel

FORFEITURE/PENALTY - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

625 DRUG RELATED SEIZURE OF PROPERTY
         21 USC 881
690 OTHER

LABOR - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
710 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT
720 LABOR/MGMT. RELATIONS
740 RAILWAY LABOR ACT
751 FAMILY and MEDICAL LEAVE ACT
790 OTHER LABOR LITIGATION
791 EMPL. RET. INC. SECURITY ACT

PROPERTY RIGHTS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

820 COPYRIGHTS
840 TRADEMARK

PROPERTY RIGHTS - "8" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

830 PATENT

SOCIAL SECURITY - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

861 HIA (1395ff)
862 BLACK LUNG (923)
863 DIWC (405(g))
863 DIWW (405(g))
864 SSID TITLE XVI
865 RSI (405(g))

FEDERAL TAX SUITS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

870 TAXES (U.S. Plaintiff or Defendant)
871 IRS - THIRD PARTY 26 USC 7609

OTHER STATUTES - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

375 FALSE CLAIMS ACT
400 STATE REAPPORTIONMENT
430 BANKS AND BANKING
450 COMMERCE/ICC RATES/ETC.
460 DEPORTATION
470 RACKETEER INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT           

   ORGANIZATIONS
480 CONSUMER CREDIT
490 CABLE/SATELLITE TV
891 AGRICULTURAL ACTS
893 ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
895 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT
950 CONSTITUTIONALITY OF STATE STATUTES
890 OTHER STATUTORY ACTIONS
899 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT /            

   REVIEW OR APPEAL OF AGENCY DECISION

OTHER STATUTES - "8" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

410 ANTITRUST
850 SECURITIES / COMMODITIES / EXCHANGE

OTHER STATUTES - “0" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

896   ARBITRATION 
(Confirm / Vacate / Order / Modify)

* PLEASE NOTE DISCOVERY
TRACK FOR EACH CASE TYPE.
SEE LOCAL RULE 26.3

VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT:
                                                                                                                                                                                                                    CHECK IF CLASS ACTION UNDER F.R.Civ.P. 23 DEMAND $_____________________________
                                                                                                                                                    JURY DEMAND       YES        NO  (CHECK YES ONLY IF DEMANDED IN COMPLAINT)

VIII. RELATED/REFILED CASE(S) IF ANY
                                                                                                                                                                 JUDGE_______________________________ DOCKET NO._______________________

CIVIL CASES ARE DEEMED RELATED IF THE PENDING CASE INVOLVES:  (CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX)

1. PROPERTY INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT.
2. SAME ISSUE OF FACT OR ARISES OUT OF THE SAME EVENT OR TRANSACTION INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT.
3. VALIDITY OR INFRINGEMENT OF THE SAME PATENT, COPYRIGHT OR TRADEMARK INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT.
4. APPEALS ARISING OUT OF THE SAME BANKRUPTCY CASE AND ANY CASE RELATED THERETO WHICH HAVE BEEN DECIDED BY THE SAME

BANKRUPTCY JUDGE.
5. REPETITIVE CASES FILED BY PRO SE LITIGANTS.
6. COMPANION OR RELATED CASE TO CASE(S) BEING SIMULTANEOUSLY FILED (INCLUDE ABBREVIATED STYLE OF OTHER CASE(S)):

7. EITHER SAME OR ALL OF THE PARTIES AND ISSUES IN THIS CASE WERE PREVIOUSLY INVOLVED IN CASE NO.          , WHICH WAS
DISMISSED.  This case          IS      IS NOT (check one box) SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME CASE. 

SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD              DATE

s/Marques J. Carter 09/12/2017
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